
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         October 2, 2023 
 
 

 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – OCTOBER 2, 2023 

 
BOS Board Room                             Regular Meeting               6:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
INVOCATION   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 

1. Dr. Kim Hooker – Russell County Public Schools – Teacher Retention……....A-1 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………B-1 
 

a. Unapproved minutes of September 5, 2023  
 

2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  
for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration……………………………...B-3 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         October 2, 2023 
 
 

 

Russell County Page 2 
 

SWCC Local College Advisory Board 
 
Kathryn Easton (Resigned)(Tabled)  2-Year Term          June 30, 2025 
 
Highway & Safety Commission 
 
Gary Dotson    2-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Johnny B. Jesse    2-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Eugene Ferguson    2-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Barbara K. Cox    2-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Tony Maxfield    2-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Henry Stinson, Jr.    2-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
 
Russell County Planning Commission 
 
Charles Edmonds    4-Year Term   October 7, 2023 
John Mason     4-Year Term   October 4, 2023 
 
Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Commission 
 
Frank Horton    1-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Tony Lambert    1-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Ron Blankenship    1-Year Term   October 12, 2023 

 
CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 Minutes)  
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
  
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 

 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. JLARC Virginia’s K-12 Teacher Pipeline Report…………………………………..C-1 
 

2. VA Department of Elections – Polling Place Accessibility (Complete)..………C-2 
 

3. SWCC – Annual Scholarship Banquet (10/10/23)………………………………….C-3 
 

4. VA Opioid Abatement Authority - VOAA Workshop – 9/7/2023…………………C-4 
 

5. Russell County Landfill Groundwater – Solid Waste Permit 258……………….C-5 
 

6. AEP Industrial Landfill - Solid Waste Permit 223 & 620 & 624…………………..C-6 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         October 2, 2023 
 
 

 

Russell County Page 3 
 

7. VA Compensation Board – FY24 Special Session Budget Amendment………C-7 
 

8. Clinch River State Park Comprehensive Master Plan…………………………….C-8 
 

9. Dante Health Education & Resource Fair – 10/14/2023…………………………...C-9 
 

10. VDOT Monthly Road System Report………..………………………………………..C-10 
 

11. United Way Rural Summit……………………………………………………………...C-11 
 

REQUESTS 
  

12. Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates FY2023 Audit Engagement - $75,000…....C-12 
 

13. RC Financial System Software & Maintenance Upgrade - $40,279.…………….C-13 
 

14. VA Department of Fire – FY24 Fire Program Agreement & Grant - $95,029…..C-14 
 

15. FY23/24 County Employee Salary – 2% Salary – General Assembly Budget             
Amendment……………………………………………………………………………….C-15 

 
16. Clinch River Little League – FY24/25 Appropriation Request…………………...C-16  

 
17. Travel Request – Library………………………………….……………………………C-17 

 
18. Planning Commission Plats…………………………………………………………...C-18 

 
BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA ………...…………………………………………………………………………..E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………....F 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..G 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….H 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..I 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………J 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...L 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….M 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..N 
• RC Litter Report………………………………………………………………………….O   



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors   Information Item  

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

       Meeting: 10/2/23      6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations  
 
1.  Dr. Kim Hooker – Russell County Public Schools – Teacher Retention……....A-1 

 
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

          Meeting: 10/2/23       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

o Unapproved minutes of September 5, 2023 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



September 05, 2023 

A regular monthly mee�ng of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Tuesday, September 
05, 2023 at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the mee�ng to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace, Chair 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Chris�an, Vice – Chairman 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
 
Absent: 
 
Ka�e Paton, County Atorney 
 
Invoca�on by Caleb Johnson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
Mo�on made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Chris�an 
Nay:  None  
 
Presenta�ons 
 
Charlie Perkins, Cumberland Plateau Planning District Commission discussed the Dante Sewer 
Supplemental Grant and public hearing. 
 
Missy Carter, Community Workforce Program Director gave a brief presenta�on on the program and its 
par�cipants. 
 
 
 
 
 



New Business 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 07, 2023 MINUTES 
 

Mo�on made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the August 07, 2023 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Chris�an 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 

Mo�on made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Chris�an and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,532,728.38 including reoccurring and withholdings. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 
 
Committee Appointments 
 

RANDALL HILLMAN RE-APPOINTED TO THE SWCC LOCAL COLLEGE ADVISORY BOARD 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
re-appoint Randall Hillman to the SWCC Local College Advisory Board for a four (4) year term, said term 
ending June 30, 2027.                                                           
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Chrisitan 
Nay:  None 
 
The second appointment (Kathryn Easton resignation) to the SWCC Local College Advisory Board was 
tabled. 

TOMMY TIGNOR RE-APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY PSA 
 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to re-
appoint Tommy Tignor to the Russell County Public Service Authority for a four (4) year term, said term 
ending June 25, 2027. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

ZACK STOOTS RE-APPOINTED TO THE SOUTHWEST VA ALCOHOL SAFETY ACTION PROGRAM 
 



Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
re-appoint Zack Stoots to the Southwest Virginia Alcohol Safety Action Program for a three (3) year 
term, said term ending September 07, 2026. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Citizens’ Comment  
 
The Chair opened public comment. 
 
Hugh O’Donnell commented on the old ordinance prohibiting the sale of beer on Sunday in 
unincorporated towns in Russell County, specifically in the Castlewood area. 
 
Public comment was closed. 

 
County Administrator Reports & Requests 
 

APPROVAL TO AWARD THE LAUREL BED LAKE ACCESS FEASIBILITY STUDY CONTRACT 
 
Mo�on made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Laurel Bed Lake Access Feasibility Study Contract Award to Thompson & Litton. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: 
Nay:  None  
 
APPROVAL TO AWARD THE DANTE STEAM BUILDING RENOVATION PROJECT CONTRACT TO DIALOGUE 

+ DESIGN ASSOCIATES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Dante Steam Building Renovation Project Contract to Dialogue + Design Associates. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES TO PITTSTON PLACE AND HUD DEVELOPMENTS FOR THE 

CPRHA 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a payment in lieu of taxes for Pittston Place and HUD Developments as requested by the 
Cumberland Plateau Housing Authority. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 



 
APPROVAL TO SELL A 2022 MACK TRUCK (SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT) 

 
Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the sale of a 2022 Mack Truck as requested by the Solid Waste Department. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO SURPLUS A 2002 FORD PICKUP AND A 2000 FREIGHTLINER 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
surplus a 2002 Ford Pickup and a 2000 Freightliner. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST FOR THE TOURISM DEPARTMENT 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a travel request to attend the VA Governor’s Summit by the Tourism Department. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF PLATS FOR BOUNDARY LINE ADJUSTMENTS AS REQUESTED BY THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

 
Motion made by Oris Christian, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve plats for boundary line adjustments for Breeding, Couch, Amburgey and Warner as requested 
by the Russell County Planning Commission. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A GRANT APPLICATION FOR THE 2023 COMPREHENSIVE COMMUNTIY DEVELOPMENT 
PLANNING GRANT FOR THE COMMUNITY OF DANTE 

 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a grant application for a 2023 Comprehensive Community Development Planning Grant for the 
Community of Dante with DHCD. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, David Eaton and Oris Christian 



Nay:  None 
 
 
The Chair adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 
_____________________                   ____________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                 Chairperson 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 10/2/23      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s September 2023 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s September 2023 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s September 2023 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• September 2023 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item:  B-3 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 10/2/23        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 
 

SWCC Local College Advisory Board 
 
Kathryn Easton (Resigned)   2-Year Term          June 30, 2025 
 
Highway & Safety Commission 
 
Gary Dotson     2-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Johnny B. Jesse    2-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Eugene Ferguson    2-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Barbara K. Cox    2-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Tony Maxfield     2-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Henry Stinson, Jr.    2-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
 
Russell County Planning Commission 
 
Charles Edmonds    4-Year Term   October 7, 2023 
John Mason     4-Year Term   October 4, 2023 
 
Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Commission 
 
Frank Horton     1-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Tony Lambert     1-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
Ron Blankenship    1-Year Term   October 12, 2023 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Presentation – Informational Only. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Board Discretion.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Various   









 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item C-1 – C-18 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 10/2/23         6:00 PM 
 
 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for October 2023: 
 
REPORTS 

 
1. JLARC Virginia’s K-12 Teacher Pipeline Report…………………………………..C-1 

 
2. VA Department of Elections – Polling Place Accessibility (Complete)..………C-2 

 
3. SWCC – Annual Scholarship Banquet (10/10/23)………………………………….C-3 

 
4. VA Opioid Abatement Authority - VOAA Workshop – 9/7/2023…………………C-4 

 
5. Russell County Landfill Groundwater – Solid Waste Permit 258……………….C-5 

 
6. AEP Industrial Landfill - Solid Waste Permit 223 & 620 & 624…………………..C-6 
7. VA Compensation Board – FY24 Special Session Budget Amendment………C-7 

 
8. Clinch River State Park Comprehensive Master Plan…………………………….C-8 

 
9. Dante Health Education & Resource Fair – 10/14/2023…………………………...C-9 

 
10. VDOT Monthly Road System Report………..………………………………………..C-10 

 
11. United Way Rural Summit……………………………………………………………...C-11 

 
REQUESTS 

  
12. Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates FY2023 Audit Engagement - $75,000…....C-12 

 
13. RC Financial System Software & Maintenance Upgrade - $40,279.…………….C-13 

 
14. VA Department of Fire – FY24 Fire Program Agreement & Grant - $95,029…..C-14 

 
15. FY23/24 County Employee Salary – 2% Salary – General Assembly Budget             

Amendment……………………………………………………………………………….C-15 
 

16. Clinch River Little League – FY24/25 Appropriation Request…………………...C-16  
 

17. Travel Request – Library………………………………….……………………………C-17 
 

18. Planning Commission Plats…………………………………………………………...C-18 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 



 

ELECT-310C Page 1 
  Rev. 07/2023 

 

Polling Place Accessibility Checklist Form 

Date:     

Locality:      

Precinct:      

Polling Place Name:          

Polling Place Address:          
How to Use This Form: Follow the route a voter would take on election day approaching the 
building from the curb or parking area entering the building and reaching the voting room. 
Please try to avoid the busiest times at polling places from 6:00 a.m. until 8:00 a.m. and from 
4:00 p.m. until 6:00 p.m. Each inspection should take between 30 minutes and an hour 
depending on the nature and location of the polling place. 
 

Answer every question on the form by marking “YES,” “NO,” or “N/A” (Not Applicable) as 
appropriate. Be sure to indicate N/A if the question does not apply to the polling place. Many 
questions will require further comments/explanations in order for others to get a better 
understanding of the accessibility issues at hand. Please provide as much information as you can 
under “comments” for those questions that require further explanation. Remember that you 
have the advantage of being at the polling place site whereas others reviewing this form will not. 
Therefore, make all necessary comments to describe any deficiencies. 
 

This checklist is based on the 2010 ADA Standards (2010 Standards).  The 1991 ADA 
Standards (1991 Standards) and the 2010 Standards, as applied to polling places, are very 
similar, with the exception of the requirements for accessible parking. For example, the 1991 
Standards required only one van-accessible space for every eight accessible spaces (see 28 
C.F.R. pt. 36, Appendix D, §4.1.2(5)(b)), while the 2010 Standards require one van-accessible 
space for every six accessible spaces (see 2010 Standards §208.2.4). Safe Harbor: Elements 
and spaces in a building constructed or altered before March 15, 2012, that complied with the 
1991 Standards are not required to be modified to be compliant with the 2010 Standards. See 
28 C.F.R. §35.150(b)(2) for more information. 
 

Tools and Documentation: 

A few simple tools may be needed to conduct the survey: 

1. A metal tape measure at least 16 ft long. 
2. A 24 inch level with a bubble measure, or a digital device for measuring slope. 
3. A pressure gauge or flash-hook scale to test the force required to open a door. 
4. A clipboard, a copy of the survey (one for each polling place), and pens/pencils. 



 

ELECT-310C Page 2 
  Rev. 07/2023 

5. A digital camera or smartphone: Pictures will help to explain and document barriers on site. 
** Please note: Exterior pictures only! **  

 
This document was developed based on the United States Department of Justice (DOJ) ADA 
checklist. The ADA Standards, the basis for this document, can be found on the United States 
Access Board website, ADA Accessibility Standards. For solutions to common ADA barriers, 
please see the document from DOJ entitled, Solutions for Five Common ADA Access Problems at 
Polling Places. ELECT also recommends consulting with your ADA Coordinator or other 
designated accessibility personnel within your local government. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ELECT-310C Page 3 
  Rev. 07/2023 

Parking 

At least one clearly marked accessible parking space must be provided for every 25 regular 
parking spaces. 

Total Spaces Number of Accessible Spaces 
1-25 1 
26-50 2 
51-75 3 
76-100 4 

For every 6 accessible spaces provided, one space must be van accessible. If only one accessible 
space is available, it must be van accessible. 

 Yes 
 

No N/A Comments/Remedies: 

Does the polling place have spaces designated for 
persons with disabilities? 
  
Total Number of Parking Spaces:                   
Number of Accessible Spaces Required: 
Number of Accessible Space Available: 
 

    

Is there at least one Van Accessible space provided 
with an 8ft space and an 8ft access aisle or with an 
11ft space and a 5ft access aisle? 
 

    

Do all standard spaces have an 8ft wide space with 
a 5ft access aisle? (2 spaces can share 1 access 
aisle.) 
 

    

Are the surfaces of the designated accessible 
parking spaces and access aisle stable, firm, and 
slip-resistant? 

    

Is the access aisle part of the accessible route to the 
entrance of the polling place? 
 

    

Are the designated accessible parking spaces 
located on the shortest route to the accessible 
entrance of the polling place? 

    

 

 

 

 



 

ELECT-310C Page 4 
  Rev. 07/2023 

Passenger Drop-off Areas 

Only complete this section if there is a passenger drop-off area provided. If not, proceed to the 
next section. 

 Yes No N/A Comments/Remedies: 

Is the vehicle pull-up space on a level 
surface, with slopes not exceeding 1:48 in 
all directions? 

    

Is the access aisle next to the vehicle pull-
up space on a level surface, with a slope 
not exceeding 1:48 in all directions? 

    

Is a curb ramp provided if a curb separates 
the access aisle from the accessible route to 
the polling place accessible entrance? 

    

Is the width of the curb ramp surface at 
least 36 inches (not counting the side 
flares)? 

    

Does an accessible route connect the 
access aisle and curb ramp to the 
accessible entrance of the polling place? 

    

 

Curbside Voting Area 

 Yes No N/A Comments/Remedies: 
Is the curbside voting area clearly marked 
with a sign and instructions? 

    

Is the curbside voting area within 150ft of 
the entrance to the polling place? 

    

Does the curbside voting area block a fire 
lane or fire hydrant? 

    

Please describe how voters will be able to 
notify officers of election that they require 
assistance at the curbside voting area. 

 

If a doorbell/buzzer will be used, will it be 
positioned so that the voter does not need to 
leave their vehicle to interact with the 
device? 

    

 



 

ELECT-310C Page 5 
  Rev. 07/2023 

Exterior Route to Accessible Entrance 

Assess the routes from the parking lot, passenger drop-off area, public sidewalks, and public 
transportation stops separately. You may attach additional pages to this document to assess each 
of the routes. 

 Yes No N/A Comments/Remedies: 

Is the route at least 3ft wide?     

Is the route free of abrupt changes in 
level greater than ½ inch, including 
stairs? 

    

Are walking surfaces stable, firm, and 
slip resistant? 

    

Is the route free of wall-mounted objects 
that protrude more than 4 inches into the 
path of travel and are between 27 inches 
and 80 inches high? 

    

Is the route free of post-mounted objects 
that protrude more than 1ft into the path 
of travel and are between 27 inches and 
80 inches high? 

    

Are objects that hang over the pedestrian 
route 80 inches or higher, including the 
underside of exterior stairs? 

    

If the route crosses a curb, is there a curb 
ramp that is at least 3ft wide with a slope 
of no more than 1:12? 

    

Is the running slope part of the route 
greater than 1:20? If yes, go to the 
Ramps section. 

    

Is the cross slope of the accessible route 
no greater than 1:48? 

    

Are the signs designating the path of 
travel understandable, visible, & easy to 
read?   

    

 

 

 

 



 

ELECT-310C Page 6 
  Rev. 07/2023 

Polling Place Entrances 

 Yes No N/A Comments/Remedies: 
Is the clear width of the door opening 
(one door or one active leaf of a double 
door) at least 32 inches? 

    

Is each door hardware useable with one 
hand without tight grasping, pinching, or 
twisting of the wrist? 

    

On the pull side of the door, is there at 
least 18 inches of clearance provided to 
the side of the latch? 

    

Is the area in front of the door level, with 
slopes no greater than 1:48 in all 
directions? 

    

If there are doors in a series, is the 
distance between the two hinged doors at 
least 4ft plus the width of the door 
swinging into the space? 

    

Can the second door (interior door) in 
the series be opened with no more than 
5lbs of force? 

    

Does the second door (interior door) in 
the series comply with the above 
questions regarding entrances? 

    

Are door thresholds no higher than ½ 
inch (Note: if the threshold is between ¼ 
inch and ½ inch it must be beveled.) 

    

Do inaccessible entrances have signage 
directing voters to the accessible 
entrance? 

    

If voters are directed to an alternative 
accessible entrance, is this entrance kept 
unlocked during voting hours? 

    

 

Route from Entrance into the Voting Area 

 Yes No N/A  Comments/Remedies: 
 
Is the route at least 3ft wide? 

    

Is the route free of wall-mounted objects 
that protrude more than 4 inches into the 
path of travel and are between 27 inches 
and 80 inches high? 

    



 

ELECT-310C Page 7 
  Rev. 07/2023 

Is the route free of post-mounted objects 
that protrude more than 1ft into the path 
of travel and are between 27 inches and 
80 inches high? 

    

Are objects that hang over the route 80 
inches or higher, including the underside 
of stairs? 

    

Is the route free of abrupt changes in 
level greater than ½ inch, including 
stairs? 

    

Is the running slope part of the route 
greater than 1:20? If yes go to the Ramps 
section. 

    

If the route to the voting area has stairs, 
is a platform lift or elevator provided? If 
yes, go to the Lift or Elevator Section. 

    

If doors are provided along the route to 
the voting area, is the clear width of each 
door opening (one door or one active leaf 
of a double door) at least 32 inches? 

    

Is each door hardware useable with one 
hand without tight grasping, pinching, or 
twisting of the wrist? 

    

Can each door be opened with no more 
than 5lbs of force? 

    

Is the threshold at each door no higher 
than ½ inch? (Note: If the threshold is 
between ¼ inch and ½ inch it must be 
beveled.) 

    

On the pull side of each door, is there at 
least 18 inches of clearance provided to 
the side of the latch? 

    

Is the area in front of each door level, 
with slopes no greater than 1:48 in all 
directions? 

    

Are the signs designating the path of 
travel understandable, visible, & easy to 
read?   

    

 

 

 

 



 

ELECT-310C Page 8 
  Rev. 07/2023 

Within the Voting Area 

 Yes No N/A Comments/Remedies: 
Are floor surfaces stable, firm, and slip-
resistant? 

    

Is the route free of wall-mounted objects 
that protrude more than 4 inches into the 
path of travel and are between 27 inches 
and 80 inches high? 

    

Is the route free of post-mounted objects 
that protrude more than 1ft into the path 
of travel and are between 27 inches and 
80 inches high? 

    

Are objects that hang over the route 80 
inches or higher including the underside 
of stairs? 

    

Is there enough room to provide a route 
at least 3ft wide to the registration table 
and voting stations? 

    

Is there enough room to provide a 
turning space in front of at least one 
voting station, such as a circle, that is at 
least 60 inches in diameter? 

    

Are the signs designating the check-in 
area and path of travel understandable, 
visible, & easy to read?   

    

 

Voting Stations and Accessible Devices 

 Yes No N/A Comments/ Remedies: 
Does the location of the accessible 
voting station offer the same level of 
privacy to voters with disabilities as to 
all other voters? 

    

Are there devices to aid individuals with 
disabilities to vote, including large-type 
instructions for voters with visual 
disabilities and telecommunication 
devices for voters with hearing 
impairments?  

    

 

 



 

ELECT-310C Page 9 
  Rev. 07/2023 

Ramps 

Assess each ramp separately, whether exterior or interior. Attach these separate assessments to this 
checklist. 

 Yes No N/A Comments/Remedies: 
Is the running slope of the ramp no 
greater than 1:12? 

    

Is the cross slope of the ramp 1:48 or 
less? 

    

Is the rise (height) for any ramp run 30 
inches or less? 

    

Is the ramp, measured between 
handrails, at least 3ft wide? 

    

Does the ramp have a level landing that 
is at least 60 inches long, at the top and 
bottom of each section? 

    

For every 30 inches of rise, is a level 
landing at least 60 inches long 
provided? 

    

Is a level landing, at least 60 inches by 
60 inches, provided where the ramp 
changes direction? 

    

If the rise of the ramp is greater than 6 
inches and the ramp or landing has a 
vertical drop-off on either side of the 
ramp, is edge protection provided? 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

ELECT-310C Page 10 
  Rev. 07/2023 

Lifts 

Only complete if your polling place has a wheelchair or other lift along the accessible route to the 
voting area. 

 Yes No N/A Comments/Remedies: 
Is the lift operational at the time of this 
survey? 

    

Is the lift independently operable or can 
it be made so during Election Day? 

    

Is there 30 inches by 48 inches of clear 
floor space within the lift? 

    

Are the controls for the lift no higher 
than 48 inches? 

    

Are the controls useable with one hand 
without tight grasping, pinching, or 
twisting? 

    

Is the clear width of the door 
opening/gate opening at the end of the 
lift at least 32 inches? If a side door/gate 
is provided, is the clear opening width at 
least 42 inches? 

    

 

Elevators 

Only complete if your polling place has an elevator along the accessible route to the voting area. 

 Yes No N/A Comments/Remedies: 
Is the elevator door opening at least 3ft 
wide? 

    

Is there space to maneuver within the 
elevator, e.g. 51” deep and 68” wide OR 
80” deep and 54” wide OR 60” deep and 
60” wide? 

    

Are hallway elevator call buttons 48 
inches high or lower? 

    

Does the elevator have visible and 
audible signals in the hallway to indicate 
the arrival and direction of the elevator 
car? 

    

Does the elevator have visible and 
audible signals within the elevator car to 
indicate the position of the car? 

    

 



 

ELECT-310C Page 11 
  Rev. 07/2023 

 

The polling place has been reviewed according to this checklist. The statements made in this 
document are accurate and true to the best of my knowledge. Barriers identified in this document 
will be remedied before Election Day. 

 

            

Printed Name       Signature    

  

            

Position      Date 

 

 







 
Commonwealth of Virginia 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
SOUTHWEST REGIONAL OFFICE 

355-A Deadmore Street, Abingdon, Virginia 24210 

(276) 676-4800 

www.deq.virginia.gov 
Travis A. Voyles Michael S. Rolband, PE, PWD, PWS Emeritus 

Secretary of Natural and Historic Resources Director 
(804) 698-4020 

 

Jeffrey Hurst 
Regional Director 

September 22, 2023 

 

 

Mr. Lonzo Lester 

County Administrator 

Russell County 

P O Box 1208 

Lebanon, VA 24266 

 

 

RE:  Groundwater Protection Standard (GPS) for Cobalt 

 Evaluation of Background-based GPS for Cobalt 

Russell County Landfill  

Solid Waste Permit #258 

 

 

Dear Mr. Lester: 

 

This letter acknowledges the receipt and review of the County’s Evaluation of Background-based GPS 

for Cobalt for the above-listed facility.  The report was submitted to the Virginia Department of 

Environmental Quality (DEQ) on December 29, 2022 by Draper Aden Associates on behalf of the 

County.  

 

The facility has proposed to continue using the calculated background value of 14.7 ug/L as the GPS 

value for cobalt.  The Department’s statistical review by Mr. Hasan Keceli (enclosed) has determined 

that the proposed GPS value for cobalt is acceptable.  The facility may use the value of 14.7 ug/L as 

the background-based GPS value for cobalt per 9VAC20-81-250.A.6.d.   

 

Please note that the conclusions presented in this letter are based solely on information supplied by the 

addressee or their environmental representative. The resulting review of this information was 

undertaken in accordance with applicable law, regulations, and DEQ guidance. This letter does not 

make or imply a final determination of compliance, nor does it constitute a “case decision,” as defined 

by Virginia Code § 2.2-4001, regarding any of the actions undertaken as discussed in this letter. 

Pursuant to Virginia Code § 2.2-4001, a “‘case’ or ‘case decision’ means any agency proceeding or 



GPS for Cobalt 

SWP258 – Russell County Landfill 

Page 2 of 2 

 

determination that, under laws or regulations at the time, a named party as a matter of past or present 

fact, or of threatened or contemplated private action, either is, is not, or may or may not be (i) in 

violation of such law or regulation or (ii) in compliance with any existing requirement for obtaining or 

retaining a license or other right or benefit.” 

 

If you have any additional questions regarding the facility’s groundwater monitoring program, please 

feel free to contact Mr. John Surber, Groundwater Remediation Specialist, at (276) 608-8574 or 

john.surber@deq.virginia.gov. 

 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 
 

 

 

Stacy A. Bowers 

SWRO Land Program Manager 
 

 

enc: Statistical Review Memo 

 

 

cc: SW GW File SWP 258 

DEQ SWRO:  Sandy Crampton, John Surber, Stephan Martin, Stacy Bowers 

 Carrie Blankenship, Draper Aden Associates/TRC (cblankenship@trccompanies.com) 

 William Mason-Deese, Draper Aden Associates/TRC (wmasondeese@trccompanies.com) 

 Lonzo Lester, Russell County (lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us) 

ejs46878
Stacy Bowers



 

OFFICE OF FINANCIAL 

RESPONSIBILITY AND WASTE 

PROGRAMS 

  
 

 

TO:   John Surber 

 

THROUGH:      Sanjay Thirunagari  

 

FROM:        Hasan Keceli   

 

DATE:   July 18, 2023 

 

CC:   Geoff Christe 

                                         

 

SUBJECT:          Statistical Review of Proposed  

                                       GPS for Russell County Landfill, Permit  

                                       #258 
                 

 

Per your request, I have reviewed the proposed ground water protection 

standard for cobalt at the Russell County Landfill. 

 

Based on the information provided in the report and my review, the proposed 

groundwater protection standard for cobalt (14.7 ug/l) is acceptable. If the 

facility has any questions, I can be reached at (804) 912-6936. 

 

M     

E  

M 

O 



 
Commonwealth of Virginia 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
SOUTHWEST REGIONAL OFFICE 

355-A Deadmore Street, Abingdon, Virginia 24210 

(276) 676-4800 

www.deq.virginia.gov 
Travis A. Voyles Michael S. Rolband, PE, PWD, PWS Emeritus 

Secretary of Natural and Historic Resources Director 

 (804) 698-4020 
 

Jeffrey Hurst 

Regional Director 

September 13, 2023 

 

Ms. Jill Parker-Witt  

Appalachian Power 

502 N Allen Avenue 

Shreveport, LA 71101-2669 

 

RE: Clinch River Industrial Landfill 

 Russell County, Virginia 

Solid Waste Permit (“SWP”) 223 

Minor Modification #020 

 

Dear Ms. Parker-Witt: 

 

The Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) Southwest Regional Office (SWRO) has 

reviewed the figures, which were submitted as part of a minor modification.  These revised 

documents delineate the individual boundaries of SWP 223 Industrial Landfill, SWP 620 Pond 1, 

and SWP 624 Pond 2 and revise the aggregate individual facility boundaries to extend to the 

property line for the overall facility.  The request has been reviewed for technical adequacy and 

regulatory compliance and appear to meet the requirements for Industrial Landfills in §9 VAC 20-

81-100 through 260 and the Part B Permit in §9 VAC 20-81-470. 

 

In accordance with 9 VAC 20-81-600.F.2.c. of the Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations 

(VSWMR, 9 VAC 20-81 et seq.), incorporation of these plans into SWP 223 is a minor 

modification requiring director approval.  In order to document this modification, please 

incorporate a copy of this letter, its attachments, and the following documents into each copy of 

SWP 223. 

 

• Permit Minor Modification letter dated September 6, 2023, including Figures 1 & 2. 

 

  

http://www.deq.virginia.gov/


Clinch River Industrial Landfill 

Russell County, Virginia 

Minor Modification #020 of SWP 223 

September 14, 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

As provided by Rule 2A:2 of the Supreme Court of Virginia, you have 30 days from the date of 

service of this decision to initiate an appeal of this decision, by filing notice with: 

 

Michael Rolband, Director 

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality 

ATTN:  Division of Land Protection & Revitalization  

P.O. Box 1105 

Richmond, Virginia 23218 

 

In the event that this decision is served to you by mail, three days are added to that period.  Please 

refer to Part Two of the rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia, which describes the required 

content of the Notice of Appeal, including specification of the Circuit Court to which an appeal is 

taken, and additional requirements governing appeals from decisions of administrative agencies. 

 

In accordance with 9 VAC 20-81-600.F.2.d., the permittee is required to notify the local governing 

body of this modification within 90 days of this letter.  Mr. Lester is copied on this letter to satisfy 

this requirement.   

 

Please note that it is the responsibility of Appalachian Power to obtain any other permits or 

authorizations that may be necessary.  If there are any questions, please contact Daniel P. Scott, 

PE, Solid Waste Permits, at (276) 698-7546 or daniel.scott@deq.virginia.gov.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

       

Jeffrey L. Hurst 

Regional Director 

Southwest Regional Office 

 

Attachment: Permit Minor Modification letter dated September 6, 2023 

 

c: Facility File - SWP 223 

Stacy Bowers, Land Protection Manager, DEQ-SWRO 

Jenny Poland, Solid Waste Permit Coordinator DEQ-CO 

Geoff Christe, Groundwater Permit Coordinator DEQ-CO 

Kathryn Perszyk, Land Protection and Revitalization Director, DEQ-CO  

Daniel Scott, Permit Writer, DEQ-SWRO 

John Surber, Permit Writer, DEQ-SWRO 

Stephan Martin, Solid Waste Inspector, DEQ-SWRO 

Sandra Crampton, Environmental Specialist, DEQ-SWRO 

Mr. Lonzo Lester, Russell County Administrator (lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us) 

mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
vno79457
Jeff.Hurst_signature



 
 

September 6, 2023 

VIA Email 

 

Mr. Jeffrey Hurst, Regional Director 

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality – Southwest Regional Office  

Attn: Division of Land Protection and Revitalization  

355-A Deadmore Street 

Abingdon, Virginia 24210 

 

Subject: Request for Minor Modification 020 (PEEPS Request MIN100) 

  Clinch River Landfill – Permit No. 223 

 

Dear Mr. Hurst: 

 

Appalachian Power Company’s Clinch River Plant requests a minor modification of the solid waste permit 

for the Clinch River Facility-Landfill; SWP 223.   

 

Specifically, we are requesting the recognition of the property boundary as the facility boundary for this unit. 

Attached are figures showing the background groundwater monitoring wells within the property/facility 

boundary, the compliance wells outside of the waste management boundary but within the property/facility 

boundary, and the surveyed disposal unit boundary. 

 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please let me know at jcparker-witt@aep.com 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Jill Parker-Witt, P.E. 

Environmental Services 

 

ec: John Surber/Dan Scott/Stacy Bowers DEQ  

 Brian Newton/Tate Jackson, APCo 

Jill Parker-Witt



@A

@A

@A@A

@A

@A

@A

@A
@A

@A
@A

@A@A

@A

@A

@A

@A@A

CRLE-27R

Carbo Rd

C
o

Rd
665

C
ar

bo
Ch

ur
ch

Av
e

Train
Station

R
d

C
o

R
d

616

C
o

R
d

61
6

Co Rd 777

MW-1707
MW-1708

MW-1709

MW-1710
MW-1711MW-1712

CRLE-7

CRLE-10

CRLE-27

W-2029W-2031

MW-1601
MW-1602MW-1608

MW-1611
W-2204

MW-1609

Eagle Nest Br

Dumps Cree
k

Clinch River

Drawn By: SRS 09/06/2023PROJ: 7650232877

±
American Electric Power, Clinch River Plant

Cleveland, Virginia

FIGURE 1
Background Well Locations

2016 aerial imagery obtained from Esri, USDA Farm Service
Agency

0 800 1,600 2,400 3,200
Feet

0 200 400 600 800100
Meters

2030 Falling Waters Rd, Suite 300
Knoxville TN  37922

POND 2
POND 1

LANDFILL

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 P

:\G
IS

\A
E

P
_C

lin
ch

_R
iv

er
\P

on
d1

_N
E

S
\M

X
D

s\
22

11
30

 P
on

d 
1 

N
E

S
 R

ev
 1

\F
ig

 1
6r

ev
 - 

B
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

W
el

ls
.m

xd

SYMBOL KEY
@A Chattanooga Background Well

@A Rome Background Well

@A Dumps Fault background Well

Stream/Surface Water

Property Boundary/Facility Boundary

Waste Management Boundary

Disposal Unit Boundary

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP-223

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP-620

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP-624

s185463
Typewritten text
Reclaim pond

s185463
Line



@?

@?@?
A

A

A
@?

@A

@?

@?

A
A

A

@A

@A

@A

@A

@A

@?
@?

@?

@?
@?@?

@?

@?

@?

@?
@?

@A

@A

@A
@A

@A

@A

@A
@A

@A

@A

@?

CRLE-07

CRLE-10

CRLE-27

W-2029W-2031

W-1

W-14

CRLE-12
CRLE-17

CRLE-22

CRLE-23
CRLE-24

CRLE-25

CRLE-26

W-1903

MW-1701

MW-1702

MW-1703

MW-1704

MW-1706

MW-1707

MW-1708

MW-1709

MW-1710
MW-1711MW-1712

MW-1601

MW-1602MW-1608

MW-1611
MW-1609

MW-1603

MW-1604

MW-1605
MW-1610
MW-1606MW-1607

MW-1612

CRLE-27R

W-2204

Mill Crk

Dum
ps 

Cree
k

Ea
gle

 N
es

t B
r

Clinch River

±
American Electric Power, Clinch River Plant

Cleveland, Virginia

2030 Falling Waters Rd, Suite 300
Knoxville TN  37922

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 P

:\G
IS

\A
E

P
_C

lin
ch

_R
iv

er
\P

on
d1

_N
E

S
\M

X
D

s\
22

11
30

 P
on

d 
1 

N
E

S
 R

ev
 1

\F
ig

 X
 - 

P
on

d1
 M

W
s 

an
d 

P
on

d 
2 

G
W

.m
xd

Drawn: SRS 09/06/2023PROJ: 7650232877
0 1,900 3,800

Feet

0 480 960
Meters

@?
Chattanooga Background
Compliance Well

A
Chattanooga Downgradient
Compliance Well

@?
Rome Background
Compliance Well

A
Rome Downgradient
Compliance Well

@?
Dumps Fault Background
Compliance Welll

@A
Dumps Fault Downgradient
Compliance Well

Property Boundary/Facility
Boundary
Waste Management
Boundary
Disposal Unit Boundary
Stream/Surface Water

Symbol Key
FIGURE 2

AEP Clinch River - Regulatory Wells

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP 223

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP 620

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP 624

s185463
Typewritten text
Reclaim pond

s185463
Line



 
Commonwealth of Virginia 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
SOUTHWEST REGIONAL OFFICE 

355-A Deadmore Street, Abingdon, Virginia 24210 

(276) 676-4800 

www.deq.virginia.gov 
Travis A. Voyles Michael S. Rolband, PE, PWD, PWS Emeritus 

Secretary of Natural and Historic Resources Director 

 (804) 698-4020 
 

Jeffrey Hurst 

Regional Director 

September 13, 2023 

 

Ms. Jill Parker-Witt  

Appalachian Power 

502 N Allen Avenue 

Shreveport, LA 71101-2669 
 

RE: Clinch River CCR Surface Impoundment Pond 1 

Russell County, Virginia 

Solid Waste Permit (“SWP”) 620 

Minor Modification #009 

 

Dear Ms. Parker-Witt: 

 

The Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) Southwest Regional Office (SWRO) has 

reviewed the figures, which were submitted as part of a minor modification.  These revised 

documents delineate the individual boundaries of SWP 223 Industrial Landfill, SWP 620 Pond 1, 

and SWP 624 Pond 2 and revise the aggregate individual facility boundaries to extend to the 

property line for the overall facility.  The request has been reviewed for technical adequacy and 

regulatory compliance and appear to meet the requirements for SWP 620.   

 

In accordance with 9 VAC 20-81-600.F.2.c. of the Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations 

(VSWMR, 9 VAC 20-81 et seq.), incorporation of these plans into SWP 620 is a minor 

modification requiring director approval.  In order to document this modification, please 

incorporate a copy of this letter, its attachments, and the following documents into each copy of 

SWP 620. 

 

•  Permit Minor Modification letter dated September 7, 2023, including Figures 1 & 2. 

 

  



Clinch River CCR Surface Impoundment Pond 1 

Russell County, Virginia 

Minor Modification #009 of SWP 620 

September 13, 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

As provided by Rule 2A:2 of the Supreme Court of Virginia, you have 30 days from the date of 

service of this decision to initiate an appeal of this decision, by filing notice with: 

 

Michael Rolband, Director 

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality 

ATTN:  Division of Land Protection & Revitalization  

P.O. Box 1105 

Richmond, Virginia 23218 

 

In the event that this decision is served to you by mail, three days are added to that period.  Please 

refer to Part Two of the rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia, which describes the required 

content of the Notice of Appeal, including specification of the Circuit Court to which an appeal is 

taken, and additional requirements governing appeals from decisions of administrative agencies. 

 

In accordance with 9 VAC 20-81-600.F.2.d., the permittee is required to notify the local governing 

body of this modification within 90 days of this letter.  Mr. Lester is copied on this letter to satisfy 

this requirement.   

 

Please note that it is the responsibility of Appalachian Power to obtain any other permits or 

authorizations that may be necessary.  If there are any questions, please contact Daniel P. Scott, 

PE, Solid Waste Permits, at (276) 698-7546 or daniel.scott@deq.virginia.gov.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

      Jeffrey L. Hurst 

Regional Director 

Southwest Regional Office 

 

Attachment:  Permit Minor Modification letter dated September 7, 2023  

c: Facility File – SWP 620 

Stacy Bowers, Land Protection Manager, DEQ-SWRO 

Jenny Poland, Solid Waste Permit Coordinator DEQ-CO 

Geoff Christe, Groundwater Permit Coordinator DEQ-CO 

Kathryn Perszyk, Land Protection and Revitalization Director, DEQ-CO 

Daniel Scott, Permit Writer, DEQ-SWRO 

John Surber, Permit Writer, DEQ-SWRO 

Stephan Martin, Solid Waste Inspector, DEQ-SWRO 

Sandra Crampton, Environmental Specialist, DEQ-SWRO 

Mr. Lonzo Lester, Russell County Administrator (lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us) 

vno79457
Jeff.Hurst_signature



 
 

VIA Email 

 

Mr. Jeffrey Hurst, Regional Director 

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality – Southwest Regional Office  

Attn: Division of Land Protection and Revitalization  

355-A Deadmore Street 

Abingdon, Virginia 24210 

 

Subject: Request for Minor Modification to Permit 009 (PEEPS Request MIN101) 

  Clinch River Pond-1 – Permit No. 620 

 

Dear Mr. Hurst: 

 

Appalachian Power Company’s Clinch River Plant requests a minor modification of the solid waste permit 

for the Clinch River Facility-Pond-1; SWP 620.   

 

Specifically, we are requesting the recognition of the property boundary as the facility boundary for this unit. 

Attached are figures showing the background groundwater monitoring wells within the property/facility 

boundary, and the compliance wells outside of the waste management boundary but within the 

property/facility boundary 

 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please let me know at jcparker-witt@aep.com 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Jill Parker-Witt, P.E. 

Environmental Services 

 

ec: John Surber/Dan Scott/Stacy Bowers DEQ  

 Brian Newton/Tate Jackson, APCo 

Jill Parker-Witt

September 7, 2023 



@A

@A

@A@A

@A

@A

@A

@A
@A

@A
@A

@A@A

@A

@A

@A

@A@A

CRLE-27R

Carbo Rd

C
o

Rd
665

C
ar

bo
Ch

ur
ch

Av
e

Train
Station

R
d

C
o

R
d

616

C
o

R
d

61
6

Co Rd 777

MW-1707
MW-1708

MW-1709

MW-1710
MW-1711MW-1712

CRLE-7

CRLE-10

CRLE-27

W-2029W-2031

MW-1601
MW-1602MW-1608

MW-1611
W-2204

MW-1609

Eagle Nest Br

Dumps Cree
k

Clinch River

Drawn By: SRS 09/06/2023PROJ: 7650232877

±
American Electric Power, Clinch River Plant

Cleveland, Virginia

FIGURE 1
Background Well Locations

2016 aerial imagery obtained from Esri, USDA Farm Service
Agency

0 800 1,600 2,400 3,200
Feet

0 200 400 600 800100
Meters

2030 Falling Waters Rd, Suite 300
Knoxville TN  37922

POND 2
POND 1

LANDFILL

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 P

:\G
IS

\A
E

P
_C

lin
ch

_R
iv

er
\P

on
d1

_N
E

S
\M

X
D

s\
22

11
30

 P
on

d 
1 

N
E

S
 R

ev
 1

\F
ig

 1
6r

ev
 - 

B
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

W
el

ls
.m

xd

SYMBOL KEY
@A Chattanooga Background Well

@A Rome Background Well

@A Dumps Fault background Well

Stream/Surface Water

Property Boundary/Facility Boundary

Waste Management Boundary

Disposal Unit Boundary

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP-223

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP-620

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP-624

s185463
Typewritten text
Reclaim pond

s185463
Line



@?

@?@?
A

A

A
@?

@A

@?

@?

A
A

A

@A

@A

@A

@A

@A

@?
@?

@?

@?
@?@?

@?

@?

@?

@?
@?

@A

@A

@A
@A

@A

@A

@A
@A

@A

@A

@?

CRLE-07

CRLE-10

CRLE-27

W-2029W-2031

W-1

W-14

CRLE-12
CRLE-17

CRLE-22

CRLE-23
CRLE-24

CRLE-25

CRLE-26

W-1903

MW-1701

MW-1702

MW-1703

MW-1704

MW-1706

MW-1707

MW-1708

MW-1709

MW-1710
MW-1711MW-1712

MW-1601

MW-1602MW-1608

MW-1611
MW-1609

MW-1603

MW-1604

MW-1605
MW-1610
MW-1606MW-1607

MW-1612

CRLE-27R

W-2204

Mill Crk

Dum
ps 

Cree
k

Ea
gle

 N
es

t B
r

Clinch River

±
American Electric Power, Clinch River Plant

Cleveland, Virginia

2030 Falling Waters Rd, Suite 300
Knoxville TN  37922

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 P

:\G
IS

\A
E

P
_C

lin
ch

_R
iv

er
\P

on
d1

_N
E

S
\M

X
D

s\
22

11
30

 P
on

d 
1 

N
E

S
 R

ev
 1

\F
ig

 X
 - 

P
on

d1
 M

W
s 

an
d 

P
on

d 
2 

G
W

.m
xd

Drawn: SRS 09/06/2023PROJ: 7650232877
0 1,900 3,800

Feet

0 480 960
Meters

@?
Chattanooga Background
Compliance Well

A
Chattanooga Downgradient
Compliance Well

@?
Rome Background
Compliance Well

A
Rome Downgradient
Compliance Well

@?
Dumps Fault Background
Compliance Welll

@A
Dumps Fault Downgradient
Compliance Well

Property Boundary/Facility
Boundary
Waste Management
Boundary
Disposal Unit Boundary
Stream/Surface Water

Symbol Key
FIGURE 2

AEP Clinch River - Regulatory Wells

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP 223

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP 620

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP 624

s185463
Typewritten text
Reclaim pond

s185463
Line



 
Commonwealth of Virginia 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
SOUTHWEST REGIONAL OFFICE 

355-A Deadmore Street, Abingdon, Virginia 24210 

(276) 676-4800 

www.deq.virginia.gov 
Travis A. Voyles Michael S. Rolband, PE, PWD, PWS Emeritus 

Secretary of Natural and Historic Resources Director 

 (804) 698-4020 
 

Jeffrey Hurst 

Regional Director 

September 13, 2023 

 

Ms. Jill Parker-Witt  

Appalachian Power 

502 N Allen Avenue 

Shreveport, LA 71101-2669 
 

 

RE: Clinch River CCR Surface Impoundment Pond 2 

Russell County, Virginia 

Solid Waste Permit (“SWP”) 624 

Minor Modification #004 

 

Dear Ms. Parker-Witt: 

 

The Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) Southwest Regional Office (SWRO) has 

reviewed the figures, which were submitted as part of a minor modification.  These revised 

documents delineate the individual boundaries of SWP 223 Industrial Landfill, SWP 620 Pond 1, 

and SWP 624 Pond 2 and revise the aggregate individual facility boundaries to extend to the 

property line for the overall facility.  The request has been reviewed for technical adequacy and 

regulatory compliance and appear to meet the requirements for SWP 624. 

 

In accordance with 9 VAC 20-81-600.F.2.c. of the Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations 

(VSWMR, 9 VAC 20-81 et seq.), incorporation of these plans into SWP 624 is a minor 

modification requiring director approval.  In order to document this modification, please 

incorporate a copy of this letter, its attachments, and the following documents into each copy of 

SWP 624. 

 

•  Permit Minor Modification letter dated September 7, 2023, including Figures 1 & 2. 

 

  



Clinch River CCR Surface Impoundment Pond 2 

Russell County, Virginia 

Minor Modification #004 of Permit SWP 624 

September 13, 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

As provided by Rule 2A:2 of the Supreme Court of Virginia, you have 30 days from the date of 

service of this decision to initiate an appeal of this decision, by filing notice with: 

 

Michael Rolband, Director 

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality 

ATTN:  Division of Land Protection & Revitalization  

P.O. Box 1105 

Richmond, Virginia 23218 

 

In the event that this decision is served to you by mail, three days are added to that period.  Please 

refer to Part Two of the rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia, which describes the required 

content of the Notice of Appeal, including specification of the Circuit Court to which an appeal is 

taken, and additional requirements governing appeals from decisions of administrative agencies. 

 

In accordance with 9 VAC 20-81-600.F.2.d., the permittee is required to notify the local governing 

body of this modification within 90 days of this letter.  Mr. Lester is copied on this letter to satisfy 

this requirement.   

 

Please note that it is the responsibility of Appalachian Power to obtain any other permits or 

authorizations that may be necessary.  If there are any questions, please contact Daniel P. Scott, 

PE, Solid Waste Permits, at (276) 698-7546 or daniel.scott@deq.virginia.gov.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

      Jeffrey L. Hurst 

Regional Director 

Southwest Regional Office 

 

Attachment:  Permit Minor Modification letter dated September 7, 2023  

c: Facility File - SWP 624 

Stacy Bowers, Land Protection Manager, DEQ-SWRO 

Jenny Poland, Solid Waste Permit Coordinator DEQ-CO 

Geoff Christe, Groundwater Permit Coordinator DEQ-CO 

Kathryn Perszyk, Land Protection and Revitalization Director, DEQ-CO 

Daniel Scott, Permit Writer, DEQ-SWRO 

John Surber, Permit Writer, DEQ-SWRO 

Stephan Martin, Solid Waste Inspector, DEQ-SWRO 

Sandra Crampton, Environmental Specialist, DEQ-SWRO 

Mr. Lonzo Lester, Russell County Administrator (lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us) 

vno79457
Jeff.Hurst_signature



 
 

VIA Email 

Mr. Jeffrey Hurst, Regional Director 

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality – Southwest Regional Office  

Attn: Division of Land Protection and Revitalization  

355-A Deadmore Street 

Abingdon, Virginia 24210 

 

Subject: Request for Minor Modification 004 (PEEPS Request MIN102) 

  Clinch River Pond-2– Permit No. 624 

 

Dear Mr. Hurst: 

 

Appalachian Power Company’s Clinch River Plant requests a minor modification of the solid waste permit 

for the Clinch River Facility-Pond-2; SWP 624.   

 

Specifically, we are requesting the recognition of the property boundary as the facility boundary for this unit. 

Attached are figures showing the background groundwater monitoring wells within the property/facility 

boundary, and the compliance wells outside of the waste management boundary but within the 

property/facility boundary. 

 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please let me know at jcparker-witt@aep.com 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Jill Parker-Witt, P.E. 

Environmental Services 

 

ec: John Surber/Dan Scott/Stacy Bowers DEQ  

 Brian Newton/Tate Jackson, APCo 

September 7, 2023 

Jill Parker-Witt



@A

@A

@A@A

@A

@A

@A

@A
@A

@A
@A

@A@A

@A

@A

@A

@A@A

CRLE-27R

Carbo Rd

C
o

Rd
665

C
ar

bo
Ch

ur
ch

Av
e

Train
Station

R
d

C
o

R
d

616

C
o

R
d

61
6

Co Rd 777

MW-1707
MW-1708

MW-1709

MW-1710
MW-1711MW-1712

CRLE-7

CRLE-10

CRLE-27

W-2029W-2031

MW-1601
MW-1602MW-1608

MW-1611
W-2204

MW-1609

Eagle Nest Br

Dumps Cree
k

Clinch River

Drawn By: SRS 09/06/2023PROJ: 7650232877

±
American Electric Power, Clinch River Plant

Cleveland, Virginia

FIGURE 1
Background Well Locations

2016 aerial imagery obtained from Esri, USDA Farm Service
Agency

0 800 1,600 2,400 3,200
Feet

0 200 400 600 800100
Meters

2030 Falling Waters Rd, Suite 300
Knoxville TN  37922

POND 2
POND 1

LANDFILL

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 P

:\G
IS

\A
E

P
_C

lin
ch

_R
iv

er
\P

on
d1

_N
E

S
\M

X
D

s\
22

11
30

 P
on

d 
1 

N
E

S
 R

ev
 1

\F
ig

 1
6r

ev
 - 

B
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

W
el

ls
.m

xd

SYMBOL KEY
@A Chattanooga Background Well

@A Rome Background Well

@A Dumps Fault background Well

Stream/Surface Water

Property Boundary/Facility Boundary

Waste Management Boundary

Disposal Unit Boundary

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP-223

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP-620

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP-624

s185463
Typewritten text
Reclaim pond

s185463
Line



@?

@?@?
A

A

A
@?

@A

@?

@?

A
A

A

@A

@A

@A

@A

@A

@?
@?

@?

@?
@?@?

@?

@?

@?

@?
@?

@A

@A

@A
@A

@A

@A

@A
@A

@A

@A

@?

CRLE-07

CRLE-10

CRLE-27

W-2029W-2031

W-1

W-14

CRLE-12
CRLE-17

CRLE-22

CRLE-23
CRLE-24

CRLE-25

CRLE-26

W-1903

MW-1701

MW-1702

MW-1703

MW-1704

MW-1706

MW-1707

MW-1708

MW-1709

MW-1710
MW-1711MW-1712

MW-1601

MW-1602MW-1608

MW-1611
MW-1609

MW-1603

MW-1604

MW-1605
MW-1610
MW-1606MW-1607

MW-1612

CRLE-27R

W-2204

Mill Crk

Dum
ps 

Cree
k

Ea
gle

 N
es

t B
r

Clinch River

±
American Electric Power, Clinch River Plant

Cleveland, Virginia

2030 Falling Waters Rd, Suite 300
Knoxville TN  37922

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 P

:\G
IS

\A
E

P
_C

lin
ch

_R
iv

er
\P

on
d1

_N
E

S
\M

X
D

s\
22

11
30

 P
on

d 
1 

N
E

S
 R

ev
 1

\F
ig

 X
 - 

P
on

d1
 M

W
s 

an
d 

P
on

d 
2 

G
W

.m
xd

Drawn: SRS 09/06/2023PROJ: 7650232877
0 1,900 3,800

Feet

0 480 960
Meters

@?
Chattanooga Background
Compliance Well

A
Chattanooga Downgradient
Compliance Well

@?
Rome Background
Compliance Well

A
Rome Downgradient
Compliance Well

@?
Dumps Fault Background
Compliance Welll

@A
Dumps Fault Downgradient
Compliance Well

Property Boundary/Facility
Boundary
Waste Management
Boundary
Disposal Unit Boundary
Stream/Surface Water

Symbol Key
FIGURE 2

AEP Clinch River - Regulatory Wells

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP 223

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP 620

s185463
Typewritten text
SWP 624

s185463
Typewritten text
Reclaim pond

s185463
Line



COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA 
 

Compensation Board 
 

P.O. Box 710 

Richmond, Virginia 23218-0710 
 

 

     JEFFREY PALMORE                           CRAIG BURNS 

                  CHAIRMAN                                STACI HENSHAW 
                                 EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 

 

       ROBYN DE SOCIO                         
      EXECUTIVE SECRETARY 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

September 15, 2023 
 

EMAIL MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  The Honorable Fred Clark, President, Virginia Sheriffs’ Association 
The Honorable Shannon Taylor, President, Virginia Association of Commonwealth’s 

Attorneys 
The Honorable Jody Acosta, President-Elect, Treasurers’ Association of Virginia 
The Honorable J.B. Timberlake II, President, Commissioners of the Revenue 
Association of Virginia 
The Honorable Teresa Dobbins, President, Virginia Court Clerks’ Association 

Derek Almarode, President, Virginia Association of Regional Jails 
Michelle Gowdy, Executive Director, Virginia Municipal League 

  Dean Lynch, Executive Director, Virginia Association of Counties 
 
FROM: Robyn M. de Socio, Executive Secretary 
 

RE: Overview of Compensation Board Funding Contained in the 2023 General Assembly 
Special Session I Approved Budget (Amendments to the FY24 Budget) 

 
Attached please find an overview of budget amendments affecting Constitutional Officers and 
the Compensation Board contained in the 2023 General Assembly Special Session I Approved 

Budget. Based upon our analysis, this overview presents items that directly affect 
Constitutional Officers and/or Aid to Localities funding on their behalf.  

 
These amendments are the result of the budget conference agreement approved by the House 
and Senate during the 2023 Special Session I on Wednesday, September 6, 2023 and 
approved by Governor Youngkin on Thursday, September 14, 2023. 
 
Please feel free to contact Charlotte Lee or me should you need additional information or have 
any questions concerning the enclosed summary. 

 
Attachment 
cc: Compensation Board Members 
 The Honorable Margaret "Lyn" McDermid, Secretary of Administration 
 Compensation Board Staff 
 Kelly Richards, Analyst, Department of Planning and Budget 
 John Jones, Executive Director, Virginia Sheriffs’ Association 
 Amanda Howie, Executive Director, Virginia Association of Commonwealth’s Attorneys 
 Jane Chambers, Director, Commonwealth’s Attorneys’ Services Council 
 Alan Albert, O’Hagan Meyer 

Patrice Lewis, Gentry Locke 
Joseph Horbal, Legislative Coordinator, Commissioners of the Revenue Association of Virginia 
Michael Edwards, Kemper Consulting 

 Janet Areson, Virginia Municipal League 
 Katie Boyle, Virginia Association of Counties 
 
s:/biennial budget FY23-24/2023 GA Special Session I/budget bill/fy24 approved bud bill amendmens 9-23 association ltr  



 

 

 

OVERVIEW OF COMPENSATION BOARD FUNDING 

INCLUDED IN APPROVED 2023 SPECIAL SESSION I 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO FY24 

 

September 15, 2023 

 

FY24 Budget Bill (Chapter 1) Budget Amendments 

 

All Constitutional Officers 

 

• An additional 2% across-the-board salary increase for Constitutional Officers, Regional Jail 

Superintendents, Finance Directors and their Compensation Board funded employees, is 

approved effective December 1, 2023, provided the governing body uses such funds to 

support salary increases; 

 

• Additional funding of $41,850 in FY24 to support qualified and unfunded participation in 

each funded career development program as identified in the FY23 budget cycle (breakdown 

provided in office specific details provided below) is approved effective December 1, 2023; 

 

• Additional funding of $5.95 million in FY24 to support restoration of prior reductions to 

unfunded salaries resulting from prior budget reductions (breakdown provided in office 

specific details below) is approved effective December 1, 2023; 

 

• No additional funding was included to support the additional cost of policy-based salary 

increases due to population increases for Constitutional Officers that met a population-based 

threshold in FY23. 

 

Sheriffs and Regional Jails 

 

• Funding of $7,579,057 in FY24 is approved to restore salary progression differentials for 

Compensation Board-funded deputies/jail officers that are ranked above entry-level, 

maintaining the 4.56% differential for entry-level sworn positions with a year or more of 

service, maintaining the further 9.3% salary differential for ranked deputies/officers in 

Grades 9 to 11 (including Master Deputy and Master Jail Officer program participants), and 

maintaining the further 16.8% differential for ranked deputies/officers in Grades 12-14; 

ranked and tenured sworn deputy/jail officer positions with current salaries below the new 

minimum salaries at each classification level will be increased to the new ranked minimum 

effective December 1, 2023. Funding also includes maintaining compression-based 

increases provided August 1, 2022 for tenured sworn deputies/officers on top of the higher 

salary levels created by the restoration of salary progression differentials (new minimum 

salary levels for ranked positions), also effective December 1, 2023. 

 

• Funding of $1,026,952 in FY24 is approved to support 40 sworn entry-level corrections 

positions and 4 partially funded medical and treatment positions to staff additional Board of 

Local and Regional Jails approved capacity in the Piedmont Regional Jail, effective December 

1, 2023; 

 

• Funding of $726,367 in FY24 is approved to consolidate the population-based salary levels 

of all Sheriffs in localities with populations less than 70,000 into one grouping at the higher 

bracket currently assigned to localities with population of 40,000 to 69,999, effective 

December 1, 2023; 

 

• Additional funding of $25,953 in FY24 is approved to support additional participation in the 

Sheriffs’ Career Development Program based on qualified and unfunded additional 

participation identified in FY23 Budget request submissions, effective December 1, 2023.  

 



 

 

 

 

Jails 

 

• Funding of $1,429,779 in FY24 and language is provided to increase the inmate per diem 

payment for every local-responsible inmate housed in a local or regional jail on or after 

December 1, 2023, by an additional $1 per day, from the current rate of $4 per day to $5 

per day.  This rate change will impact per diem payments beginning with the fourth quarter 

payment in FY24 for inmates housed in December, 2023 and January and February, 2024; 

 

• Reduced funding of $160,345 is associated with the impact of additional staffing in 

Piedmont Regional Jail and a corresponding elimination of the jail’s partial exemption from 

federal overhead recovery.  

 

Commonwealth’s Attorneys 

 

• Funding of $3,964,746 in FY24 is provided to support targeted salary increases for 

Compensation Board-funded Assistant Commonwealth’s Attorneys to establish parity with 

salaries of Public Defenders, increasing entry-level Assistant Attorney I and career 

prosecutor positions by 11.98%, Assistant Attorney II positions by 25.68%, Assistant 

Attorney III positions by 13.51%, and Assistant Attorney IV positions by 26.1%, effective 

December 1, 2023.  

 

Circuit Court Clerks 

 

• Funding of $597,507 in FY24 is provided to support targeted salary increases for 

Compensation Board-funded Circuit Court Clerk staff to establish parity with salaries of 

District Court Clerks, increasing salaries of positions in Pay Bands 1 and 2 by 4.59% and 

positions in Pay Band 4 by 2.51%, effective December 1, 2023; 

 

• Additional funding of $3,543 in FY24 is approved to support additional participation in the 

Deputy Circuit Court Clerks’ Career Development Program based on qualified and unfunded 

additional participation identified in FY23 Budget request submissions. 

 

• A technical amendment is included to correct the Circuit Court Clerks’ population-based 

salary table to reflect the additional $1,250 increase that was previously implemented 

August 1, 2022. 

 

Treasurers 

 

• Funding of $1,988,433 in FY24 is approved to restore the salaries of all remaining unfunded 

deputy treasurer positions effective December 1, 2023; 

 

• Additional funding of $8,269 in FY24 is approved to support additional participation in the 

Treasurers’ Career Development Program based on qualified and unfunded additional 

participation identified in FY23 Budget request submissions. 

 

Finance Directors 

 

• No program specific changes were included in the approved budget amendments for FY24.  

 

Commissioners 

 

• Funding of $931,301 in FY24 is approved to restore the salaries of all remaining unfunded 

deputy commissioners of the revenue effective December 1, 2023; 

 



 

 

 

• Additional funding of $4,085 in FY24 is approved to support additional participation in the 

Deputy Commissioners of the Revenue Career Development Program based on qualified and 

unfunded additional participation identified in FY23 Budget request submissions. 

 

Administration 

 

• Additional positions associated with staffing the increased capacity in Piedmont Regional Jail 

have been added to the position count table. 
 

• A technical amendment was included to correct an error in the position count table to 

accurately reflect positions approved for a jail expansion project impacting inmate bed 

capacity and new behavioral health case manager and partially funded medical and 

treatment positions included in the current budget. 



HEALTH EDUCATION 

AND RESOURCE FAIR 

DATE: 

Saturday, October 14, 2023 

TIME: 

9:30am-2:00pm 

WHERE: 

Dante Crossings Entrance Foyer, 508 Bunchtown Road
Dante VA 24237
Rear Handicap access

Blood Pressure Checks, Blood Sugar Checks, 

and Health Education provided by ETSU 

Medical Resources provided by Appalachian 
Highlands Care Network, part of Ballad Health 

For more information contact Lou Wallace 276-254-3809
email: lou.wallace@russellcountyva.us

QUILLEN 

COLLEGE of MEDICINE 
EAST TENNESSEE STATE UNIVERSITY 

I 

'{:; ·�o















 

BLACKSBURG OFFICE: 
108 South Park Drive 

Blacksburg, Virginia 24060 

(540) 552‐7322 

CONTACT: 
Gordon B. Jones, CPA 

Member 

gjones@rfca.com 
 

 

 

September 22, 2023 

 
County of Russell, Virginia 
Attention: Mr. Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 

and Members of the Board 
P.O. Box 1208 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

Dear Mr. Lester and Members of the Board of Supervisors: 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for County of Russell, 
Virginia for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
Audit Scope and Objectives 
 
We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information, including the disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, of 
County of Russell, Virginia as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023. Accounting standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) provide for certain required 
supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to 
supplement County of Russell, Virginia’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, 
we will apply certain limited procedures to County of Russell, Virginia’s RSI in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). These limited 
procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by GAAP and will be 
subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:  
 
1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 
2) Schedules related to pension and OPEB funding progress. 
 
The budgetary comparison information, presented as RSI, will be subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in audit of the basic financial statements and we will provide an opinion on it in 
relation to the financial statements, as a whole. 

 



 

 
 

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies 
County of Russell, Virginia’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary 
information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS, and we will 
provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole in a report combined with 
our auditor’s report on the financial statements  
 
1) Schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
2) Other supplementary information. 
 
In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, we will read the following other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and 
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement 
of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.  
 
1) Introductory section 
2) Other statistical information 
 
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinions about whether your financial statements are fairly 
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP,  and report on the fairness of the 
supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements. The objectives also include 
reporting on: 
 
 Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, 

contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the 
financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 
 

 Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of 
opinion) on compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of 
federal awards that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance 
with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements and Single Audit   
 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the 
Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of 
the Commonwealth of Virginia; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of the 
Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major program(s) 
in accordance with Uniform Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to 



 

 

express such opinions. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing 
Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 
 
We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent 
financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting 
on behalf of the government. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, 
Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform specific procedures to detect 
waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of 
detecting waste or abuse. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal 
control, and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance may not be detected by us, 
even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or 
violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements or on major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of 
management of any material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets 
that come to our attention.  We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any 
violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly 
inconsequential. We will include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. Our 
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any 
later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.  
 
In connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via email transmission. 
As emails can be intercepted and read, disclosed, or otherwise used or communicated by an 
unintended third party, or may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed 
and only to such parties, we cannot guarantee or warrant that emails from us will be properly 
delivered and read only by the addressee. Therefore, we specifically disclaim and waive any liability 
or responsibility whatsoever for interception or unintentional disclosure of emails transmitted by us 
in connection with the performance of this engagement. In that regard, you agree that we shall have 
no liability for any loss or damage to any person or entity resulting from the use of email 
transmissions, including any consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or special damages, such as 
loss of revenues or anticipated profits, or disclosure or communication of confidential or proprietary 
information. 
 
We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue 
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 
 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in 
the accounts, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets and liabilities by 
correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. The 
component unit Russell County Public Service Authority will not be audited by Robinson, Farmer, Cox 
Associates.  As such, amounts included in the County of Russell, Virginia financial statements will be 
based on the financial statements of the Russell County.  We will request written representations from 



 

 
 

the Russell County Industrial Development Authority’s auditor and will obtain their most recent peer review 
report in order to make reference to the separately issued report. We will also request written 
representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement.  
 
We have identified the following significant risk(s) of material misstatement as part of our audit 
planning:  

 

 Management override of controls and revenue recognition are considered significant risks in 
nearly all audit engagements. 

 Recognition and reporting of amounts related to leases are considered significant due to the 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 87 required for fiscal year 2022.  

 Risk related to items identified in the prior management recommendation letter. 

 Risks related to material adjustments to the 2022 financial statements.  The risk was reported as 
findings in the 2022 Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 
Our audit of financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities.  
 
Audit Procedures—Internal Control  
 
We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including the system of 
internal control, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions.  
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. Tests of controls may be performed to test 
the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors 
and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting 
misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would 
be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed 
in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate 
the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or 
detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal 
award program. However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an 
opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal 
control issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 
 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during 
the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control 
related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards, 
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance.  
 
 
 



 

 

Audit Procedures—Compliance  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we will perform tests of County of Russell, Virginia’s compliance with 
provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements, including grant agreements. 
However, the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance, 
and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government 
Auditing Standards. 
 
The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of federal awards applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests 
of transactions and other applicable procedures described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for 
the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of County 
of Russell, Virginia’s major programs. For federal programs that are included in the Compliance 
Supplement, our compliance and internal control procedures will relate to the compliance 
requirements that the Compliance Supplement identifies as being subject to audit. The purpose of 
these procedures will be to express an opinion on County of Russell, Virginia’s compliance with 
requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant 
to the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Other Services  

 
Financial Statement and SEFA Preparation 
 
We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
(SEFA), and related notes of County of Russell, Virginia in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the Uniform Guidance based on information 
provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing 
Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards.  We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The 
other services are limited to the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, 
and related notes services previously defined, and other items as listed below. We, in our sole 
professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that 
could be construed as assuming management responsibilities. 
 
You agree to assume all management responsibilities for the financial statements, schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, and related notes, and any other nonaudit services we provide. You 
will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with 
preparation of the financial statements, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related 
notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted 
responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an 
individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; 
evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them. 
 
Agreed-Upon Procedures (APA and DEQ) 
 
You will agree to the procedures referenced in the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and 
Towns issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts relative to the comparative report transmittal forms 
and sheriff’s internal control and procedures related to municipal solid waste facilities and/or 
storage tanks in accordance with the Code of Virginia and will acknowledge that the procedures to 
be performed are appropriate for the intended purpose of the engagement, which is Applying 



 

 
 

Agreed-Upon Procedures in accordance with requirements as specified in the Uniform Financial 
Reporting Manual, the Virginia Sheriff’s Accounting Manual and mandates by the Environmental 
Protection Agency and the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality. Our engagement to apply 
agreed-upon procedures will be conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by 
the AICPA. Those standards require that we obtain your written agreement to the procedures to be 
applied and your acknowledgement that those procedures are appropriate for the intended purpose 
of the engagement, as described in this letter. A refusal to provide such agreement and 
acknowledgement will result in our withdrawal from the engagement. No other parties will be 
requested to agree to the procedures and acknowledge that the procedures performed are 
appropriate for their purpose.  We make no representation that the procedures we will perform are 
appropriate for the intended purpose of the engagement or for any other purpose. 
 
Because the agreed-upon procedures do not constitute an examination or review, we will not express 
an opinion or conclusion on the subject matter. In addition, we have no obligation to perform any 
procedures beyond those to which you agree.  
 
We will issue written reports on completion of our engagement that list the procedures performed 
and our findings. Our reports will be addressed to the County of Russell, Virginia and appropriate 
agencies. If we encounter restrictions in performing our procedures, we will discuss the matter with 
you. If we determine the restrictions are appropriate, we will disclose the restrictions in our report. 
Our report will contain a paragraph indicating that had we performed additional procedures, other 
matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. You understand 
that the reports are intended solely for the information and use of the Auditor of Public Accounts, 
the Virginia DEQ, and the County of Russell, Virginia and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 
 
 
There may exist circumstances that, in our professional judgement, will require we withdraw from 
the engagement. Such circumstances include the following: 
 
 You refuse to provide written agreement to the procedures and acknowledge that they are 

appropriate for the intended purpose of the engagement. 
 

 You fail to provide requested written representations, or we conclude that there is sufficient 
doubt about the competence, integrity, ethical values, or diligence of those providing the written 
representations, or we conclude that the written representations provided are otherwise not 
reliable. 

 
 We determine that the description of the procedures performed or the corresponding findings are 

misleading in the circumstances of the engagement. 
 

 We determine that restrictions on the performance of procedures are not appropriate. 
 
An agreed-upon procedures engagement is not designed to detect instances of fraud or 
noncompliance with laws or regulations; however, should any such matters come to our attention, 
we will communicate them in accordance with professional standards and applicable law. In addition, 
if in connection with this engagement, matters come to our attention that contradict the subject 
matter, we will communicate such matters to you.  
 
You are responsible for the subject matter to which our agreed-upon procedures are applied. In 
addition, you are responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you or the 
appropriate party are aware that is relevant to the performance of the agreed-upon procedures on 



 

 

the subject matter, (2) additional information that we may request from the appropriate party for 
the purpose of performing the agreed-upon procedures, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within 
the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain evidence relating to performing those 
procedures. 
 
At the conclusion of our engagement, we will require certain written representations in the form of a 
representation letter from management that, among other things, will confirm management’s 
responsibility for the subject matter in accordance with the Uniform Financial Reporting Manual, the 
Virginia Sheriff’s Manual, and mandates of the Environmental Protection Agency and the Virginia 
Department of Environmental Quality. 
 
Virginia Retirement System Examination 
 
We will examine management’s assertion that the census data reported to the Virginia Retirement 
System (“VRS”) by the County of Russell, Virginia during the year ended June 30, 2023, is complete 
and accurate. The objectives of our examination are to (1) obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether management’s assertion that the census data reported to the VRS is free from material 
misstatement based on the requirements to be met by participants in the VRS as defined by the VRS 
and the Board of Trustees’ plan provisions as mandated in the Code of Virginia Section 51.1-136; and 
(2) to express an opinion as to whether management’s assertion that the census data reported to the 
VRS is fairly stated, in all material respects. 
 
Our examination will be conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
AICPA. Accordingly, it will include examining, on a test basis, management’s records and other 
procedures to obtain evidence necessary to enable us to express our opinion. We will issue a written 
report upon completion of our examination. Our report will be addressed to County of Russell, 
Virginia and the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. We cannot provide 
assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is 
necessary for us to modify our opinion. If our opinion is other than unmodified, we will discuss the 
reasons with you in advance. If for any reason, we are unable to complete the examination or are 
unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or may 
withdraw from this engagement. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an examination engagement, together with the inherent 
limitations of internal control, an unavoidable risk exists that some material misstatements may not 
be detected, even though the examination is properly planned and performed in accordance with the 
attestation standards.  
 
We will plan and perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
management’s assertion that the census data reported to the VRS is free from material misstatement, 
based on the requirements to be met by participants in the VRS as defined by the VRS and the Board 
of Trustees’ plan provisions as mandated in the Code Section of Virginia Section 51.1-136. Our 
engagement will not include a detailed inspection of every transaction and cannot be relied on to 
disclose all material errors, known and suspected fraud, noncompliance with laws or regulations, or 
internal control deficiencies, that may exist. However, we will inform you of any known and 
suspected fraud, noncompliance with laws or regulations, internal control deficiencies identified 
during the engagement and uncorrected misstatements that come to our attention, unless clearly 
trivial. 
 
We understand that you will provide us with the information required for our examination and that 
you are responsible for the accuracy and completeness of that information. We may advise you about 
appropriate criteria or assist in the preparation of the subject matter, but the responsibility for the 
subject matter remains with you. 



 

 
 

 
Management is responsible for the presentation of the census data described above in accordance 
with the requirements described above; and for selecting the criteria and determining that such 
criteria are suitable, will be available to intended users, and are appropriate for the purpose of the 
engagement. Management is responsible for, and agree to provide us with, a written assertion about 
whether the presentation of the census data described above is presented in accordance with the 
requirements described above. Failure to provide such an assertion will result in our withdrawal from 
the engagement. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which 
you are aware that is relevant to the measurement, evaluation, or disclosure of the subject matter; 
(2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the examination; and (3) 
unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain 
evidence. 
 
At the conclusion of the engagement, you agree to provide us with certain written representations in 
the form of a representation letter. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Single Audit  

 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for 
(1) designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, including internal controls over federal awards, and for evaluating 
and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) 
following laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government 
programs are administered in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring that 
management and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also 
responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and 
application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and all accompanying information in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, with the 
oversight of those charged with governance;  and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations 
(including federal statutes), rules, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements (including 
award agreements). Your responsibilities also include identifying significant contractor relationships 
in which the contractor has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and 
completeness of that information. 
 
You are also responsible for making drafts of financial statements, schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, all financial records, and related information available to us and for the accuracy 
and completeness of that information (including information from outside of the general and 
subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of 
which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-
party relationships and transactions, and other matters; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, 
records, supporting documentation, and other information as needed to perform an audit under the 
Uniform Guidance; (3) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit; and 
(4) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to 
obtain audit evidence.  At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written 
representations from you about the financial statements; schedule of expenditures of federal awards; 
federal award programs; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and 
related matters. 
 



 

 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements 
and confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected 
misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period 
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each 
opinion unit taken as a whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and 
detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government 
involving (1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) 
others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your 
responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud 
affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, 
regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the 
government complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. You are 
also responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we report. Additionally, as 
required by the Uniform Guidance, it is management’s responsibility to evaluate and monitor 
noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards; 
take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance 
identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings; 
and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action plan. The 
summary schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review prior to final fieldwork.  
 
You are responsible for identifying all federal awards received and understanding and complying with 
the compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards (including notes and noncash assistance received, and COVID-19-related concepts, such as 
lost revenues, if applicable) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to include our 
report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains, and 
indicates that we have reported on, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree 
to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards that includes our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in 
the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, including its form and content, is stated fairly in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not 
changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); 
and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the 
measurement or presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
 
You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have 
been engaged to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  
You agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains, 
and indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to include 
the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that 
includes our report. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation 
letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance 
with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly 
presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not 
changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); 
and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the 
measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.  
 



 

 
 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit 
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report 
copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies 
related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Scope and Objectives section of this letter. This 
responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and 
recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or 
studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions for the report, and for 
the timing and format for providing that information.  
 
Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other  
 
We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other 
confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.  
 
As an attest client, Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates cannot retain your documents on your behalf. 
This is in accordance with the ET 1.295.143  of the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct. County of 
Russell, Virginia is responsible for maintaining its own data and records.  
 
ShareFile and Engagement Organizer are used solely as a method of exchanging information and are 
not intended to store County of Russell, Virginia’s information. At the end of the engagement, 
Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates will provide County of Russell, Virginia with a copy (in an agreed-
upon format) of deliverables and data related to the engagement.  
 
Upon completion of the engagement, data and other content will either be removed from the 
ShareFile and Engagement Organizer portals or become unavailable to Robinson, Farmer, Cox 
Associates within a reasonable time frame as determined by our internal record retention policy.  
 
At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data 
Collection Form that summarizes our audit findings. It is management’s responsibility to 
electronically submit the reporting package (including financial statements, schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings, auditor’s reports, and corrective action 
plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. We will coordinate 
with you the electronic submission and certification.  The Data Collection Form and the reporting 
package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s 
reports or nine months after the end of the audit period. 
 
We will provide copies of our reports to the county; however, management is responsible for 
distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or 
containing privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for 
public inspection. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates 
and constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit 
documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely 
manner to the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the APA) or its designee, 
a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office 
for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight 
responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit 
documentation will be provided under the supervision of Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates personnel. 
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the 
aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information 
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.  



 

 

 
The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the 
report release date or for any additional period requested by the APA.  If we are aware that a 
federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will 
contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit 
documentation. 
 
Gordon B. Jones, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement 
and signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.  We expect to begin our audit 
on approximately October 2, 2023.  

 
Our fee for these services will be $75,000.  The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from 
your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during 
the engagement. It also assumes, the books do not require significant adjustments and that the 
consultant’s files support the amounts posted to the books.  If significant additional time is necessary, 
we will keep you informed of any problems we encounter and our fees will be adjusted accordingly. 
 
Reporting 
 
We will issue written reports upon completion of our Single Audit. Our reports will be addressed to 
management and the Board of Supervisors of County of Russell, Virginia. Circumstances may arise in 
which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. 
Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, 
add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor’s 
report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, 
we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the 
audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue 
reports, or we may withdraw from this engagement.  
 
The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on 
compliance and other matters will state that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the 
scope of testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance, and (2) the report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on internal 
control over compliance will state that the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance 
is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that 
testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Both reports will state that the report is 
not suitable for any other purpose.  

 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to County of Russell, Virginia and believe this letter 
accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let 
us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the 
attached copy and return it to us.  

 

Very truly yours, 
 

Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates 

 

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of County of Russell, Virginia.  

 
Management signature:    
 
 
Title:    
  
 

Governance signature:    
 
 
Title:    
  
 



                  Russell County Proposal (09/22/23)   
             
   Migration Services Include the following:   
            
            
           
 Preliminary Setup of Old AS/400, Including adding Object Connect 
Software, additional Print Transform Support, and adding necessary 
program fixes for successful migration of data.     
            

 Setting up Operations Consoles for the new system and installing the 
latest Application of Cumulative, Hiper, Data Base, Java, Print, HTTP TCP 
Services Packs. Included in this is the application of Object Connect 
software to allow for data transfer.        
            
 Initial Testing and Transferal of BAI software, including User and 
Application Libraries and necessary certificates for authentication. 
Migration of DMV  Certification and Setup. Total System Backup of System 
and Application package.         
          
 Hardware setup and Testing of the Bright software before the Final 
installation and discussion of any new features. Includes talking with Bright 
to verify product validity and make them aware of turnover date so they 
can appropriate keys for specified software.      
            
 Arrange a specified time to Setup and Migrate all Security Data, User 
Profiles and Libraries. Entire System Backups of the old AS/400 as well as 
the new Power 10. Test all areas of application the following business day 
to validate successful migration.        
             
Provision of Continued AS/400 Assistance for System Operational Support 
and Analysis, including setup of network printers and iSeries Client Setup 
and Operations. Assistance in Backup and Disaster/ Recovery Procedures. 
Continued Technical Support. 

            



 

 

  1 

 

 

Russell County 
 
 

IBM Power System S1014 Proposal 

9105-41B, 4-Core POWER10 

 
 
 
 

Billy Schonauer 

Summit Business Associates, Inc. 

577 Southlake Blvd 

Richmond, VA 23236 

804-379-8990 

bschonauer@summitbiz.net 

 

 
September 25, 2023 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

  2 

 

IBM Power S1014 Scale-out server 

Solution Summary  

 
Hardware:  Power S1014 9105-41B 

• Rackmount  

• IBM i V7.4 

• 4-core 3.8Ghz Power 10 Processor  

• 1-core licensed (26,575 CPW) 

• 32GB Memory  

• (2) 800TB NVMe Flash Drives 

• Mirrored 

• 800TB Usable after parity protection 

• NVMe backplane 

• DVD- USB attached 

• 1x 4-Port 1GB Ethernet 

• 1x PCIe SAS Adapter EJ10 

• Redundant Power- 1200W (110V)   

• 3yr 24x7 Expert Care Advanced Uplift 
 
Tape Drive 

• TS2270 LTO 7 SAS Tape Drive 

• 2m HD SAS cable 

• 3yr 24x7 HW Warranty Uplift 
 
IBM Software 

• IBM i V7.4  
• 15 Concurrent Users 
• P05 Software Tier 
• IBM Licensed Programs Transfer- No Charge 
• 3 year 24x7 SWMA 

 
 
Notes: 
 
IBM Global Financing is available for 12, 24, 36, and 60 month terms 
 
Migration Services provided by Paul Faris and billed separately 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

  3 

 

Quick Glance Upgrade Comparison 
 

  Existing Proposed 
HARDWARE SPECIFICATIONS 8202-E4D 9105-41B 

 Processor Generation Power 7 Power 10 

 Processor Feature EPCK EPG0 

 CPW Rating- Maximum 28,400 106,300 

 CPW w/ 1-core licensed 7,100 26,575 

 Rack Form Factor NO YES 

 Memory 8GB 32GB 

 Disk     

         Total Raw 556GB 1.6TB 

         Protection- RAID  RAID5 Mirrored 

         Total Usable after parity protection 415GB 800GB 

   

   

 Tape Device LTO 5 LTO 7 

 DVD YES YES 

 Redundant Power 1925W 1200W 

      

SOFTWARE SPECIFICATIONS     

 IBM i V7.1 V7.4 

      

 QU1 Query for iSeries YES YES 

 WQE DB2 WebQuery for System i NO NO 

 WDS IBM Rational Dev Studio for i YES YES 

 WE2 Web Enablement for i5/OS YES YES 

 XW1 iSeries Access YES YES 

 ST1 IBM DB2 Query Manager and SQL Kit YES YES 



 

 

  4 

 

IBM Power S1014 Scale-out server 

Pricing Summary 
System & Software:  

Component Description Sale Price 

9105-41B IBM Power S1014, 4-Core with 3yr 9x5 HW Warranty $21,600.00  

3580-H7S TS2270 Tape Drive External with 3yr 9x5 HW Warranty $5,360.00  

5770-SS1 IBM i V7.4 1-core licensed, 15 Users, 3yr 24x7 SWMA $10,745.00  
 Total  $37,705.00  
   

Hardware Warranty Uplift & Extended SWMA:  

3 years 24x7 IBM Advanced Expert Care for 9105-41B $667.00  

3 years 24x7 IBM Onsite HW Warranty Uplift for 3580-H7S $995.00  

3 years 24x7 IBM i SW Maintenance for V7.4 (P05 SW Tier) Included 
 Total $1,662.00  
   

 Estimated Shipping $912.00  
   

 IBM Hardware, Software, Maintenance- Total $40,279.00  

 IBM Global Financing- 36 month FMV lease option *estimate $1,199/mo. 

 
  

Peripherals:  

Rack Tripp Lite SmartRack 12U Mid-Depth Rack Enclosure Cabinet $695.00  

Tapes IBM LTO 6 Tape Cartridges- 10pk $370.00  

  Estimated Shipping $325.00  

 Total $1,390.00  
 

Terms and Conditions 
*Prices are afforded to Summit Business Associates by IBM and are subject to change  
*Prices are valid to 10/31/2023 
*Shipping Estimates Provided 
 
This proposal is intended solely for use by Russell County. It contains confidential and 
privileged material. Any review, transmission, dissemination or other use of or taking 
action in reliance upon this information by persons or entities other than Russell County 
is prohibited. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

  5 

 

 
 
 
 

 
IBM Power Systems S1014 9105-41B Upgrade Proposal 

Quote# BS081022SC 
 
 

Agreed to:  Agreed to:  

Russell County Summit Business Associates, Inc. 

 

By:________________________________ 

 

By:_________________________________  

Authorized Signature  Authorized Signature  

 

Name: _____________________________ 

(type or print)  

 

Name:______________________________  

(type or print)  

 

Date: ______________________________ 

 

Date: _______________________________ 

 











Clinch River Little League 
Post office Box 1126 

Castlewood, VA 24224 
Bob Salyers, President 

League Id # 3461104 

Fed. Id# 54-1350161 

September 8, 2023 

Russell County Board of Supervisors 

Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson 

1137 Highland Drive Suite A 

Lebanon,Va.24266 

Dear Supervisors: 

RE: Request for funding for 2024/2025 

We are in receipt of the letter dated February 7, 2023 from your office asking for certain 
reports for your Board to review during your budget deliberations, they have been Included as 
attachments to this submission and are labeled attachment #1 and attachment #2. 

Attachment #1 is a copy of our fiscal budget that is adopted at our annual membership 

meeting in September, it reflects the amount budgeted as income and expenses in the column 
labeled 2023 and in the column to the right it reflects the actual income and expenses through 

April 28, 2023. It also reflects the previous five (S) years of our League finances. Please keep in 

mind that these figures are connected with all of our fields and facilities which is the one at the 
park in Castlewood and three (3) at the fairground complex and one in St. Paul. We do not 

account for them separately. Attachment #2 reflects what the costs are associated with by line

item income and expense. If you have any questions about either of these feel free to call. 

In regard to our request for funding to the park this year, we would respectfully ask for 
an increase In the amount that the Board normally sends to us. They are new costs that have 

arisen in this year that needs to be addressed, such as the extra costs of the field being used by 
the Castlewood High School for High School varsity and other divisions of such, practicing and 

playing there. Extra costs have been from more use of field conditioner than usual, bathroom 
supplies, extra wear and tear on the equipment, etc. We are going to be installing a new score 

board at the facility, and a real big problem is the necessity to conduct some major work on the 
drainage in the out fields and parking area where a water problem has existed for a long time. It 

is gradually getting worse each day. A new construction of tennis courts is going to cause us to 

have to rearrange parking in the complex, which also complicates the drainage problem. The 

facility is also In need of some repairs structurally and cosmetically which we hope to put in this 
coming fiscal year improvement plan. 












































































































































































	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 10/2/23      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 10/2/23         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):




